
County Commissioners Hearing Room 

400 High Street 
Chestertown, Maryland  

 
AGENDA 

 
Monday, May 16, 2022 

5:00 p.m. 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings in person or listen to the meeting via the audio-only phone 
number and conference identification number listed below.  
 

1. Dial 1-872-239-8359 
2. Enter Conference ID: 673 754 33# 
 

Members of the public are asked to mute their phones/devices, until the Commission Chair opens the floor for 
comment.  
 
MINUTES 
 
April 18, 2022 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW: 
 

22-20 Hall Properties LLC – Variances (Side Yard Setback and Lot Size)  
  28036 and 28040 Creamery Street, Kennedyville – Second Election District – Village (V) 
 
22-22 Marci Tarrant Johnson – Variance (Pier Length)  
  22059 Harrington Park Road – Fifth Election District – Zoned Critical Area Residential (CAR)   

 
GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 
 

APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT 
 

APPLICANTS ARRIVING MORE THAN 10 MINUTES AFTER THE SCHEDULED HEARING WILL NOT BE HEARD  
AND WILL BE RESCHEDULED AT THE APPLICANT’S EXPENSE. 

 
Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Board of Appeals meetings can be held 
in closed session under the authority of the MD Open Meetings Law by vote of the members.  Breaks are at the call of the 
Chairman.  Meetings are subject to audio and video recordings. 
 
All applications will be given the time necessary to assure full public participation and a fair and complete review of all 
projects.  Agenda items are subject to change due to cancellations.   
Other business without assigned times may be discussed during the meeting.   





MINUTES 

Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 
Date: April 18, 2022 
Time: 5:00 P.M. 
Location: County Commissioners Hearing Room, 400 High Street, Chestertown, Maryland 

Agenda Item Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

#22-09 25809a Still Pond Neck, 
LLC – Special Exception 

The applicant is requesting a 
special exception for a utility-
scale solar energy system in the 
Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) 
on an 85-acre farm owned by 
Raymond and Joyce Stoltzfus. The 
property is located at 26001 Still 
Pond Neck Road in the Third 
Election District and is on the 
southwest corner of the 
intersection of Still Pond Neck 
Road and Still Pond Road.  The 
proposed 1 MW array of panels 
will encompass approximately 5 
acres on the northwestern corner 
of the property, and the entrance 
will be from Still Pond Neck Road. 
The surrounding area is 
predominantly farmland and 
woodland.     

The Kent County Planning 
Commission has issued a 
favorable recommendation to the 
Board of Appeals in regard to this 
application.  

Applicant/Representative 
Anthony Kupermisth, Esq. with 
McCallister, Detar, Showalter and 
Walker, appeared on behalf of the 
applicant.  

Mr. Kupersmith was sworn in and 
presented a summary of his case.  

Cory McCandless and Bruce 
Wilson with SGC Power were 
sworn in on behalf of the 
applicant.  

Ted Hastings with Becker Morgan 
Group was sworn in on behalf of 
the applicant.  

Dr. Albert Townshend, 
Chairman 

David Hill, Member (observing) 

Joan Horsey, Member 

John Massey, Member 

Mr. Christopher Drummond, 
Attorney for the Board  

Michael Pelletier, Clerk 

Ms. Massey moved to deny the 
application on the ground that the  
proposed “area of use” exceeded 
five acres; therefore, the application 
did not meet the requirements of 
Section 7.57.25(j). 

The motion to deny was seconded by 
Ms. Horsey; the motion passed with 
all in favor.  

The Applicant’s Representatives 
provided testimony and evidence in 
support of the application.  

Mr. Kupersmith introduced 
Applicant’s Exhibit 1 “MHT Project 
Review Form” and Applicant’s Exhibit 
2 “DNR Environmental Review” to be 
incorporated into the record.   

Mr. Kupersmith provided a closing 
argument in support of the 
testimony before the Board. 

Unanimous 
Denial of 
Application 



 

Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals                     April 18, 2022                                                Page 2 of 2 
 

Agenda Item Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

 
Public Comment 
 
Bob Payne from Still Pond and 
Andy Simmons from Still Pond 
were sworn in.  
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Staff 
William Mackey, Director and 
Mark Carper, Associate Planner, 
were sworn in.  
 
No correspondence was received 
on this application. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Payne and Mr. Simmons testified 
in opposition to the application 
insofar as the aesthetics of the 
agricultural landscape would be 
affected and approval of the 
application would take prime 
farmland out of the AZD.  
 
  
Mr. Carper presented the staff 
report. At the end of the meeting, 
Mr. Mackey explained the staff’s 
interpretation of the “area of use.”  

The Board went into closed 
session at 5:55 pm to obtain legal 
advice from the Board’s 
attorney. The Board adjourned 
the closed session and 
reconvened the hearing at 6:25 
pm. 

 Mr. Massey moved to go into closed 
session and Ms. Horsey seconded the 
motion; the motion passed with all in 
favor.  
 
The Board was provided legal advice 
in interpreting two provisions of the 
land use article pertaining to utility 
scale solar.  

Unanimous 
approval  
 
 
 
No vote  

MINUTES: January 10, 2022  Ms. Horsey moved to approve the 
minutes. Mr. Massey seconded the 
motion; the motion passed with all in 
favor. 
 

Approved 

Adjourn 
 

 Mr. Massey made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting, and Ms. Horsey 
seconded the motion; the motion 
passed with all in favor. The meeting 
adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

Unanimous 
Approval 

 
 
             /s/ Michael Pelletier    
Dr. Albert Townshend, Chairman      Michael Pelletier, Clerk 



May 11, 2022 
 
Dr. Al Townshend 
Kent County Board of Appeals  
400 High Street 
Chestertown, MD 21620 
 
RE:   Hall Properties LLC and Alexys Biggs  

Variances – Side Setback and Minimum Lot Size 
28036 and 28040 Creamery Street, Kennedyville 

 
Dr. Townshend: 
 
At its May 5, 2022, meeting, the Kent County Planning Commission reviewed the application of Alexys Biggs requesting a 5.6-
foot variance from the minimum 8-foot side yard setback requirement for an existing dwelling located at 28036 Creamery 
Street. As part of the same application, Hall Properties LLC is requesting a 3,329 square foot variance from the minimum 
9,500 square foot lot size requirement for the adjacent parcel, 28040 Creamery Street. The properties are located in the 
Second Election District and are zoned Village. The owners are requesting the variances to complete an adjustment of lot 
lines that will make 28036 Creamery Street less nonconforming. 
 
The Commission opined that a practical difficulty was due to the size and shape of the parcels and was not caused by the 
applicant’s actions. After discussion and consideration of the applicant’s testimony, the Commission voted to make a 
favorable recommendation for the variances. The Commission’s recommendation was based on the following findings of fact: 
 

• Granting a variance will not cause a substantial detriment to neighboring properties nor will it change the character 
of the neighborhood and district. 

• The Comprehensive Plan is neutral on this issue and the proposal is consistent with the general intent of the Land 
Use Ordinance. 

• The practical difficulty is caused by the unusual size and shape of the property. 
• The reasonable use of the entire property was considered. 

 
The Commission also recommends the standard condition that the variance will lapse if a lot line adjustment is not recorded 
within one year. 
 
Sincerely, 
Kent County Planning Commission 
 
 
 
F. Joseph Hickman 
Chair 
 
FJH/cmg 
 
cc:  Michael Scott, Surveyor 
 Lisa McDonald, Hall Properties, LLC 
 Alexys Biggs 



Page | 1  
 
 

Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning 

 
 
To: Kent County Board of Appeals 
From: Carla Gerber, Deputy Director 
Meeting: May 16, 2022 
Subject: Hall Properties LLC and Alexys Biggs 
 Variance – side setback and minimum lot size 
 

Executive Summary 
 
 
Request by Applicant 
Hall Properties LLC and Alexys Biggs are requesting variances to allow an adjustment of lot lines. 
 
Public Process 

Per Maryland State Law and Article IX, Section 2.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance, the Planning 
Commission shall review and make a recommendation to the Board of Appeals for variances.   
 
Summary of Staff Report 
The properties are located at 28036 and 28040 Creamery Street, Kennedyville, in the Second Election 
District and are zoned Village. Neither property meets the minimum size requirement, and the shared 
property line passes through the dwelling at 28036 Creamery Street. Due to the size and shape of the lots, 
an adjustment of lot lines cannot be completed without the granting of variances for the side yard setback 
for 28036 Creamery Street and for the minimum lot size for 28040 Creamery Street.  

Staff Recommendation 
Staff concurs with the Planning Commission’s recommendation to grant the variances for: 
 

1) A 5.6-foot variance of the side yard setback requirement for Parcel 64. 
2) A 3,329-square foot variance from the minimum lot size requirement for Parcel 63. 

 
  



Page | 2  
 
 

PRELIMINARY STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: Kent County Board of Appeals 
SUBJECT: #22-20 – Hall Properties, LLC, and Alexys K. Biggs 
 Variances – Side Setback and Minimum Lot Size   
DATE: May 12, 2022 
 
Description of Proposal 
 
In order to complete an adjustment of lot lines, Alexys Biggs is requesting a 5.6-foot variance from the 
minimum 8-foot side yard setback requirement for an existing dwelling that will help minimize existing 
nonconformities. As part of the same application, Hall Properties, LLC, is requesting 3,329-square foot 
variance from the 9,500 square foot minimum lot size requirement for the adjacent parcel. The properties 
are located at 28036 and 28040 Creamery Street in the Second Election District and are zoned Village. 
 
This application involves two parcels that are being reconfigured in order to make 28036 Creamery Street 
less nonconforming. Currently, the property line between Parcels 63 and 64 passes through the dwelling 
on Parcel 64 (28036 Creamery Street), and neither property meets the minimum size requirement. The 
lot line adjustment will convey 227 square feet from Parcel 63 to Parcel 64 and the new line of division 
will be 2.4 feet from the corner of the front porch and approximately 3 feet from the corners of the house. 
The new line will be about 14 feet from the house on Parcel 63. The property line cannot be located closer 
to the dwelling on Parcel 63 due to the existing driveway.  
 
Relevant Issues 
 
I. Density, Height, Width, Bulk, and Fence Requirements 

A. Comprehensive Plan: “Ensure that all new development or redevelopment meets a high standard 
of planning, workmanship, and design.” (Page 31) 

 
B. Applicable Law: Article V, Section 7.5 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance establishes the 

density, height, width, bulk, and fence requirements for the Village District.   
 

Minimum Yard 
   Front                20 feet 
   Side   8 feet 
   Rear 10 feet 
 
Minimum Lot Size – 9,500 square feet 
Minimum Lot Frontage – 50 feet 

 
C. Staff and TAC Comments: A variance of the side setback requirement is needed for Parcel 64, and 

a variance of the minimum lot size requirement is needed for Parcel 63 because it will become 
more nonconforming. The other setback and size nonconformities do not need variances.  

 
II. Variance  
 

A. Applicable Law: Article IX, Section 2.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance authorizes the 
Board of Appeals to grant variances from the yard (front, side, or rear), height, bulk, parking, 
loading, shoreline cliff, 15% slope, pier length, impervious surface, stream protection corridor, 



Page | 3  
 
 

and buffer requirements so as to relieve practical difficulties or other injustices arising out of the 
strict application of the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
Such granting of a variance shall comply, as nearly as possible, in every respect to the spirit, intent, 
and purpose of this Ordinance; it being the purpose of this provision to authorize the granting of 
variation only for reasons of demonstrable practical difficulties as distinguished from variations 
sought for purposes or reasons of convenience, profit, or caprice. 

 
In order to grant a variance, the Board of Appeals must find all the following: 
a. That the variance will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or neighboring property.  
b. That the variance will not change the character of the neighborhood or district. 
c. That the variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the general intent of this 

Ordinance. 
d. That the practical difficulty or other injustice was caused by the following: 
i. Some unusual characteristic of size or shape of the property. 
ii. Extraordinary topographical or other condition of the property. 
iii. The use or development of property immediately adjacent to the property, except that this 

criterion shall not apply in the Critical Area. 
e. That the practical difficulty or other injustice was not caused by the applicants’ own actions. 
… 
g. In considering an application for a variance, the Board shall consider the reasonable use of 

the entire parcel or lot for which the variance is requested. 
h. In considering an application for a variance, the Board of Appeals shall presume that the 

specific development activity in the Critical Area that is subject to the application and for 
which a variance is required does not conform with the general purpose and intent of this 
Ordinance and the Critical Area Law. 

i. The Board may consider the cause of the variance request and if the variance request is the 
result of actions by the applicant, including the commencement of development activity 
before an application for a variance has been filed. 

 
B. Staff and TAC Comments: The variance will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or 

neighboring properties and will not change the character of the neighborhood. The 
Comprehensive Plan is neutral on this application. The applicants are trying to improve the 
situation which is caused by the unusual size and shape of the parcels. The practical difficulty was 
not caused by the applicants’ actions as the lots were developed more than 100 years ago. The 
lot line adjustment is a reasonable request and allows for reasonable use of the properties. 

 
Staff Recommendation  
 
Staff concurs with the Planning Commission’s recommendation to grant approval. 







D
EW

ES

AU
G

U
ST

IN
E 

H
ER

M
AN

KENNEDYVILLE

REDMILL

CREAMERY

1 inch = 100 feet

K

Source: Kent County Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning. 
Aerial taken Spring 2019. Map prepared April 2022.

Hall Properties, LLC, and Alexys Biggs
Creamery Street, Kennedyville



AutoCAD SHX Text
CREAMERY           STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLDER REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
400 S CROSS ST STE 3, CHESTERTOWN, MD 21620  (410)778-2310

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CADD FILE -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET No. -

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. MOORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-383

AutoCAD SHX Text
7493

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARCH '22

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL PROPERTIES, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
& ALEXYS K. BIGGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND ELECTION DISTRICT, KENT COUNTY, MARYLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE LANDS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY SURVEY AND LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN THE VILLAGE OF KENNEDYVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP - 21, GRID - 1E, PARCELS - 63, 64 & 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
15076-HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L.M. 663/569

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6.  EXISTING PUBLIC SEWER WILL BE UTILIZED FOR SEWAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
    DISPOSAL. A EXISTING PRIVATE WELLS WILL BE UTILIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USITE NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4.  THE PROPERTIES ARE NOT LOCATED WITHIN THE CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 3.  CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION - VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
    YEAR FLOODPLAIN AS SCALED FROM FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5.  THE RESULTING PARCELS ARE NOT LOCATED WITHIN THE 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2.  FOR DEED REFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
    COMMUNITY PANEL No. 24029C0190D (ZONE "X"),

AutoCAD SHX Text
    BAY CRITICAL AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1.  PROPERTY LINE INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS THE RESULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
    FOR POTABLE WATER SUPPLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ODATE       %%O    %%OKENT COUNTY DIRECTOR OF PLANNING                   

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ODATE       %%O     %%OKENT COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT APPROVING AUTHORITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
    OF A FIELD RUN SURVEY BY MICHAEL A. SCOTT, INC. IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
    DATED JUNE 9, 2014.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 7.  I.R.F. - DENOTES IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UVICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE  1" = 1000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS N/F OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L.M. 97/372

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNA PERSOLEO-GLENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
    MARCH, 2022. BEARINGS HAVE BEEN ROTATED TO MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
    DEED, M.L.M. 663, FOLIO 569.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12711 AUGUSTINE HERMAN HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE, MARYLAND 21645

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL PROPERTIES, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOWNER (PARCEL 63):

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE No. 410-708-3111

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS N/F OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.K. 1110/27

AutoCAD SHX Text
GERALD M. FULLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS N/F OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L.M. 631/332

AutoCAD SHX Text
KATHLEEN M. SHANHOLTZER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS N/F OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L.M. 501/323

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLLY E. BAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES A. GLENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDS N/F OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L.M. 79/478

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNA M. PERSOLEO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK M. GLENN &

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES C. L. GLENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
28040 CREAMERY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE, MARYLAND 21645

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREMISES ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAILING ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
28036 CREAMERY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE, MARYLAND 21645

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREMISES ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE, MARYLAND 21645

AutoCAD SHX Text
    M.L.M. 663, FOLIO 560 (P. 63), PLAT REFERENCE, SEE J.K.H. 9/39

AutoCAD SHX Text
    S.L.K. 1245, FOLIO 171 (P. 64), PLAT REFERENCE, SEE J.K.H. 9/39

AutoCAD SHX Text
    S.L.K. 1245, FOLIO 171 (P. 67), PLAT REFERENCE, SEE J.K.H. 9/39

AutoCAD SHX Text
 8.  I.R.S. - DENOTES IRON ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREAMERY           STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°10'53" E                    120.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°50'00" W        70.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°50'00" W  39.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°04'10" E  40.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 46°50'00" E                                               160.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 43°11'10" W                                                              190.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°50'20" W       49.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°50'00" W                           120.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°10'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°50'00" W                               120.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARYLAND          ROUTE          213

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARYLAND       ROUTE        855

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREAMERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
V.F.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREMISES ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UINSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE  1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESULTING AREA = 6,171 ACRES%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P. 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING AREA = 6,398 sq. ft.%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESULTING AREA = 6,171 ACRES%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P. 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING AREA = 3,602 sq. ft.%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P. 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA = 6,000 sq. ft.%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 45%%D40'55" W                  50.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46°50'00" W     (EXISTING PROPERTY LINE TO BE REMOVED)     66.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LINE OF DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 71%%D05'40" W  5.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LINE OF DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LINE OF DIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 32%%D22'31" W  13.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P. 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
P. 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE INSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEXYS K. BIGGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE No. 410-443-7068

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UMAILING ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOWNER (PARCEL 64 & 67:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ODATE       %%O    %%OKENT COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS                           

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28036 CREAMERY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNEDYVILLE, MARYLAND 21645

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-21-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER P&Z COMMENTS



May 6, 2022 
 

Dr. Al Townsend 
Kent County Board of Appeals 
400 High Street 
Chestertown, MD 21620 
 
RE:  Marci Tarrant Johnson – Variance (Pier Length)  
 
Dear Dr. Townsend, 
 
At its meeting on May 5, 2022, the Kent County Planning Commission reviewed the application of Marci Tarrant Johnson 
requesting a variance to remove and replace a nonconforming, 95-foot pier that has been determined to exceed 25% of the 
waterway. The property is located at 22059 Harrington Park Road in the Fifth Election District and is zoned Critical Area 
Residential (CAR). In accordance with the method for measurement of waterway widths, as specified in the Kent County Land 
Use Ordinance (LUO), the proposed replacement would exceed the allowable 25% of the waterway width. The LUO prohibits 
in-kind replacement for nonconforming structures that are voluntarily removed by the property owner.  
 
The waterway on which the width was measured leads to a headland to the south on the adjacent parcel. It is approximately 
130 feet across. Adhering to 25% of that distance would limit the length of the pier to approximately 33 feet. The applicant 
reports that portion of the waterway is unnavigable with an average depth of one foot that is increasingly shallowed by 
sediment. Modest navigability is possible in the waters extending directly outward from the end of the pier and into the main 
body of Herrington Creek. The width of the waterway parallel to the angle of the pier is 697 feet, and the existing pier projects 
approximately 13% into the waterway.   
 
The practical difficulty is the limited water depth. A pier is a reasonable use/structure for a waterfront property.  
 
Following discussion, the Planning Commission voted to make a favorable recommendation for the variance for pier length and 
reconstruction of the pier. The decision was based on the following findings of fact:   
 
 The variance will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or neighboring property.  
 The variance will not change the character of the neighborhood or district.  
 The variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and general intent of the Land Use Ordinance.  
 That the practical difficulty was caused by the topographical and bathometric condition of the property. 
 The practical difficulty was not caused by the applicant’s own action.  
 
Sincerely,  
Kent County Planning Commission 
 
 
 
Joe Hickman 
Chair   
 
FJH/mc 
cc:  Marci Tarrant Johnson 



Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning 
 

 

To: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 

From: Mark Carper, Associate Planner 

Meeting: May 16, 2022 

Subject: Marci Tarrant Johnson 
 Variance – Pier Length 

 

Executive Summary 
 
 
Request by Applicant  
Marci Tarrant Johnson, owner, is requesting a variance to remove and replace a nonconforming, 95-foot pier that 
has been determined to exceed 25% of the waterway.  
 
Public Process 
Per Maryland State Law and Article IX, Section 2.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance, the Planning 
Commission shall review and make a recommendation to the Board of Appeals for variances.   
 
Summary of Staff Report  
The property is located at 22059 Harrington Park Road in the Fifth Election District and is zoned Critical Area 
Residential (CAR). In accordance with the method for measurement of waterway widths, as specified in the Kent 
County Land Use Ordinance (LUO), the proposed replacement would exceed the allowable 25% of the channel 
width. The LUO prohibits in-kind replacement for nonconforming structures that are voluntarily removed by the 
property owner.  
 
The waterway on which the width was measured leads to a headland to the south on the adjacent parcel. It is 
approximately 130 feet across. Adhering to 25% of that distance would limit the length of the pier to approximately 
33 feet. That portion of the waterway is unnavigable with an average depth of one foot that is increasingly 
shallowed by sediment. Modest navigability is possible in the waters extending directly outward from the end of 
the pier and into the main body of Herrington Creek. The width of the waterway parallel to the angle of the pier is 
697 feet, and the existing pier projects approximately 13% into the waterway.     
 
The practical difficulty is the consequence of limited water depth, and an absence of a useable pier would reduce 
the property’s value and would greatly impede long-established familial and hospitality traditions. A pier is a 
reasonable use/structure for a waterfront property.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends sending a favorable recommendation to the Board of Appeals. 
 
  



 

22-22: Marci Tarrant Johnson - Pier Length Variance   2 

PRELIMINARY STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: Kent County Planning Commission  
FROM:  Mark Carper, Associate Planner 
SUBJECT: Marci Tarrant Johnson 
 #22-22, Variance – Pier Length 
DATE: April 21, 2022 
 
Description of Proposal 
Marci Tarrant Johnson, owner, is requesting a variance to replace an existing, nonconforming pier that that has 
been determined to exceed 25% of the waterway. The applicant proposes to remove and replace an existing 95-
foot pier. In accordance with the method for measuring waterway width, as specified in the Kent County Land Use 
Ordinance, the initial permit was denied as it was determined that the proposed replacement would exceed 25% 
of the channel width, which is not permitted. The Land Use Ordinance also has language in the Nonconformities 
section that prohibits in-kind replacement for nonconforming structures that are voluntarily removed by the 
property owner. The property is located at 22059 Harrington Park Road in the Fifth Election District and is zoned 
Critical Area Residential (CAR). 
 
Relevant Issues 
I.  Pier Length 

A. Comprehensive Plan: 
"Submerged aquatic vegetation (SAV) serves as an important food, nursery, and habitat for many 
species of fish and fowl. In recent times, SAV in Kent’s tributaries have followed a recurring pattern 
of abundant beds in some years followed by severe declines and then full recovery in a few years. 
... Activities such as pier construction and sewerage outfalls must be limited and those permitted 
must be designed to minimize their impacts." (Page 63) 

 
B. Applicable Law: 

The Kent County Land Use Ordinance, Article V, Section 5.4.8 permits as an accessory use, "Private 
piers, community piers, and private shared piers, not to exceed 25% of the width of the waterway, 
the edge of the channel, or 150 feet in length, whichever is less and subject to the stipulations of 
Article VI, Section 3.7 of this ordinance."  
 
Article XI, Section 2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance specifies that the width measurement 
of a waterway is made at the shoreline location of the pier and the narrowest width of the waterway 
from that point.  
 

C. Staff and TAC Comments: 
The existing pier is 4.5 feet wide and 95 feet in full length, including access above mean high water 
(MHW). Maryland’s Environmental Resource and Land Information Network (MERLIN) indicates 
Submerged Aquatic Vegetation (SAV) was present in 2020. In August of 2021, the Maryland 
Department of the Environment and the Army Corps of Engineers approved the initial project 
application to remove the existing pier and floating platform and to construct an 80-foot long by 6 
feet wide pier and to reconfigure the “L” head platform to make it a 22-foot long by 9-foot wide “L” 
head platform, all of which is to extend no more than 89 feet channelward of MHW. The total length 
of the replacement pier would be 95 feet in full length, including access above MHW. 
 
The proposal has been reviewed by the Kent County Health Department, the Department of Public 
Works, and MDOT SHA, and none have objections or concerns. The waterway on which the width 
was measured, as defined in the Land Use Ordinance, leads to a headland to the south on the 



 

22-22: Marci Tarrant Johnson - Pier Length Variance   3 

adjacent parcel. It is approximately 130 feet across. Adhering to 25% of that distance would limit 
the length of the pier to approximately 33 feet. That portion of the waterway has an unnavigable, 
average depth of one foot that is increasingly shallowed by sediment. Modest navigability is 
possible in the waters extending directly outward from the end of the pier and into the main body 
of Herrington Creek. With this demarcation of the waterway’s width at 697 feet, the existing pier 
projects approximately 13% into the waterway.     

 
II. Nonconforming Structures 
 

A. Applicable Law: 
Article VIII, Section 2, Nonconforming Structures, of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance specifies 
the following: 

 
Nothing in these regulations shall prevent the repair or reconstruction of a lawful 
nonconforming structure damaged by fire, explosion, act of God, or act of the public enemy 
provided that the degree of nonconformity is not increased, that a permit is obtained, and 
construction is begun within two years after the occurrence. This does not apply to 
structures removed or destroyed voluntarily by the property owner or property owner’s 
agent. (Page 431) 

 
B. Staff and TAC Comments: The 40-year-old, existing structure is structurally compromised and 

beyond repair. The proposed project would not extend the length of the existing pier and would 
not impede the rights of or access to neighboring piers.  

 
III.  Variance 
   

A. Applicable Law: 
Article IX, Section 2.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance authorizes the Board of Appeals to 
grant variances from the yard (front, side, or rear), height, bulk, parking, loading, shoreline cliff, 
15% slope, pier length, impervious surface, stream protection corridor, and buffer requirements so 
as to relieve practical difficulties or other injustices arising out of the strict application of the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
Such granting of a variance shall comply, as nearly as possible, in every respect to the spirit, intent, 
and purpose of this Ordinance; it being the purpose of this provision to authorize the granting of 
variation only for reasons of demonstrable practical difficulties as distinguished from variations 
sought for purposes or reasons of convenience, profit, or caprice. 

 
In order to grant a variance, the Board of Appeals must find all of the following: 

a. That the variance will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or neighboring property. 
b. That the variance will not change the character of the neighborhood or district. 
c. That the variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the general intent of this 

Ordinance. 
d. That the practical difficulty or other injustice was caused by the following: 

i.  Some unusual characteristic of size or shape of the property. 
ii.  Extraordinary topographical or other condition of the property. 
iii.  The use or development of property immediately adjacent to the property, except that 

this criterion shall not apply in the Critical Area. 
e. That the practical difficulty or other injustice was not caused by the applicant’s own actions. 

… 



 

22-22: Marci Tarrant Johnson - Pier Length Variance   4 

g. In considering an application for a variance, the Board shall consider the reasonable use of the 
entire parcel or lot for which the variance is requested. 

h. In considering an application for a variance, the Board of Appeals shall presume that the 
specific development activity in the Critical Area that is subject to the application and for which 
a variance is required does not conform with the general purpose and intent of this Ordinance 
and the Critical Area Law. 

i. The Board may consider the cause of the variance request and if the variance request is the 
result of actions by the applicant, including the commencement of development activity 
before an application for a variance has been filed. 

 
C. Staff Comments: 

This neighborhood is characterized by small, waterfront properties along a shallow cove of 
Herrington Creek. The current pier was built approximately 40 years ago, and replacement within 
the approximate current dimension would not change the character of the community or adversely 
impact the adjacent properties.  
 
The variance is not inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan or the Critical Area Program. The 
intent of the Ordinance is that once a nonconforming structure is removed voluntarily, it is to be 
replaced in compliance with all Ordinance requirements (specifically, the 25% width of waterway 
restriction). The granting of a variance is required in order to construct a replacement pier of the 
same length as that existing.  
 
The bathymetric contours require that a functional pier extend greater than 33 feet, and the original 
construction of the pier accounted for the cove’s shallowness, which is worsening because of 
siltation. The practical difficulty is the consequence of limited water depth, and an absence of a 
useable pier would reduce the property’s value and would greatly impede long-established familial 
and hospitality traditions. A pier is a reasonable use/structure for a waterfront property.  

 
According to DNR data layers available to staff, subaquatic vegetation appears to have been or to 
be present in this location. The Tidal Wetlands Division of MDE has authorized the proposed project 
in tidal wetlands. It is not an historic waterfowl staging area or an anadromous fish spawning 
habitat.   

 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends sending a favorable recommendation to the Board of Appeals for variance for pier length and 
reconstruction of a nonconforming structure.  
 


































	3_May 16 2022
	Hall Properties variances_PC ltr to BZA
	Hall Properties variance staff report BZA
	HALL PROPERTIES LLC Variance Application
	Hall Biggs Aerial Map
	HALL PROPERTIES LLC 7493-a_Revised_2022-04-27
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Marci Johnson - Variance - PC letter to BOA
	Johnson - Pier Length Variance - Staff Report - BOA
	22-22 Johnson stuff
	ADP5DB1.tmp
	MINUTES
	Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals


	Blank Page



